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Q&A – Income Verification for Efficiency Vermont Rebate Programs 
 

1. The RFP states "Efficiency Vermont is not looking for data such as employer names, addresses, 
statuses, job titles, rates of pay, income histories, social security numbers, or other Personally 
Identifiable Information (PII)." Does this mean that you do not expect the contractor to collect 
such data or that you want the contractor to collect that data but not share it with Efficiency 
Vermont? If it is the former, how do you envision the contractor would perform income 
verification? 
 
We would expect that the successful respondent would collect the data and documentation 
necessary to conduct a document-based income verification review in accordance with the 
successful respondent’s experience and any industry standards that are in place for this level of 
review that the successful respondent adheres to in other books of work.  Efficiency Vermont 
will not be the recipient of any of the information listed above, and instead is looking to get 
generalized information as to whether or not an individual (or household) is income-eligible 
based on the successful respondent’s review and which income bracket the individual (or 
household) falls into (i.e. low, moderate, or high in accordance with the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)’s guidelines used by Efficiency 
Vermont). 

 
2. How many income verifications do you anticipate each year? 

600-900 is an estimate, although this could change significantly in the duration of the contract, 
depending on any state or federal funding opportunities that arise. 

 
3. How has income verification been performed up to now? 

Currently, once a customer submits an application for a rebate for product where there’s an 
income-eligible incentive or bonus incentive via an Efficiency-Vermont specific rebate processing 
platform, they are asked to review income thresholds that are specific to geographies and size 
of household.  These income thresholds are in accordance with standards used by the Vermont 
Housing and Finance Agency and are set by HUD on an annual basis.  The customer then attests 
to falling above or below these income thresholds within the rebate processing platform, with 
guidance language from Efficiency Vermont on how to calculate their annual household income. 
On the front end, income guidance is posted on websites for programs where there is an 
income-eligibility component – see here for an example: 
https://www.efficiencyvermont.com/rebates/list/home-performance-with-energy-star  

 
4. What kind of customer experience is Efficiency Vermont looking for the respondent to 

execute? 
Efficiency Vermont will be working with the successful respondent to craft an experience that is 
customer-focused and feasible for both entities to execute, based on current workflows.  This 
will largely depend on the capacity of the respondents, but will involve the respondent being 
responsible for the customer relationship in collecting the information needed to verify income 
and passing minimum data back to Efficiency Vermont to verify whether or not a customer falls 
into different income brackets (low, moderate, high).  Reporting frequency is expected to be 
worked out during contract negotiations, however, respondents are welcome to point out 
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current capacities in providing this information to Efficiency Vermont, based on an expected or 
proposed workflow. 

 


